1957

Lloyd F. Webster and Carl A. Webster v. John J. Knop et al : Brief of Appellants

Utah Supreme Court

PRELIMINARY STATEMENT

The appellants in this case are Grant Shumway and Douglas J. Davis, who will be referred to either by name or as defendants, and respondents, Lloyd F. Webster and Carl A. Webster, will be referred to either by name or as plaintiffs. Other parties to the action, who are no longer before this Court, will be referred to by name.

This appeal arises out of a suit brought by plaintiffs against defendants to adjudge the plaintiffs owners of an undivided two-thirds interest in certain unpatented lode mining claims as against any claim the defendants might assert thereto. The defendants, Shumway and Davis, answered by denying plaintiffs' title in the properties and, by way of an affirmative defense, sought to have the whole title to the Faith Mining Claims quieted in them. The trial court awarded judgment in favor of plaintiffs and against defendants, from which judgment this appeal is taken.

It should be noted, the defendants, Shumway and Davis, exert title only to the Faith Mining Claims Numbers 1 through 10, and not to any other properties named in plaintiffs' Complaint.

STATEMENT OF FACTS

The plaintiffs assert an undivided two-thirds interest in the Faith Mining Claims, Numbers 1 to 10, located in San Juan County, State of Utah. It is alleged that the plaintiffs and defendant, John J. Knop, entered into a grubstake agreement, dated March 23, 1954, and that pursuant to this agreement the plaintiffs, on or about April 15, 1954, located the subject claims. Thereafter, "acting under express agreement with the plaintiffs, the defendant, John J. Knop, relocated said claims on or about the 14th day of August, 1954" (Complaint, par. 3). By doing so the allegation is made that Knop was acting for and in behalf of plaintiffs.

The grubstake agreement (Plaintiffs' Exhibit 1) provides as follows:

"This agreement entered into on the 23rd day of March, 1954, by and between JOHN J. KNOP, Moab, Utah, hereinafter referred to as FIRST PARTY and LLOYD P. WEBSTER and CARL A. WEBSTER of Moab, Utah, hereinafter referred to as SECOND PARTIES,

WITNESSETH:

In consideration of the mutual covenants and agreements herein contained it is agreed as follows:

1. It is mutually agreed and understood that SECOND PARTIES shall during the season of April 1, 1954 through July, 1954 devote not less than 50% of their time and energy to the prospecting of uranium, vanadium and other valuable minerals and deposits in the region known as the Colorado Plateau in the States of Utah and Colorado and to locate, stake and record all discoveries deemed of sufficient value in the names of FIRST and SECOND PARTIES and in no other names.

2. It is mutually understood and agreed that FIRST PARTY shall furnish to SECOND PARTIES during the term of this agreement, one (1) jeep pick-up and one (1) jeep or similar vehicle or any other vehicles which FIRST PARTY may deem necessary and further that FIRST PARTY shall supply to SECOND PARTIES all necessary food stuffs, fuel and tools necessary with the prospecting to be done hereunder, and provided however, that the cost of the aforesaid items of food, fuel and tools shall not exceed \$250.00 per month.

3. It is furthermore specifically understood and agreed that the FIRST PARTY shall advance all of the costs of filing the aforesaid claims whether filing as mineral claims or lease tracts under the Atomic Energy Commission regulation Circular 7.

4. It is mutually understood and agreed that all of the expenses of surveying shall also be born $\frac{1}{3}$ by FIRST PARTY and $\frac{2}{3}$ by SECOND PARTIES.

5. The FIRST PARTY to this contract shall be deemed to own a $\frac{1}{3}$ undivided interest and SECOND PARTIES shall be deemed to own a $\frac{2}{3}$ undivided interest in and to the properties staked pursuant to the terms hereof and shall share any profits on the same basis.

6. The SECOND PARTIES covenant and agree that they shall make no charge for time and labor in performance of this contract except as herein provided.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF the parties hereto have set their hands the 23rd day of March, 1954.

/s/ John J. Knop
JOHN J. KNOP

FIRST PARTY

/s/ Lolyd P. Webster
LLOYD P. WEBSTER

/s/ Carl A. Webster
CARL A. WEBSTER

SECOND PARTIES

STATE OF UTAH }
 COUNTY OF GRAND } ss.

On the 23rd day of March, 1954, personally appeared before me JOHN J. KNOP, LLOYD P. WEBSTER and CARL A. WEBSTER, who being first duly sworn, acknowledged to me that they executed the same.

/s/ A. Reed Reynolds
*Notary Public, Residing in
 Grand County*

My Commission Expires: May 31, 1955"

It was stipulated at pre-trial between plaintiffs and defendants, Douglas J. Davis and Grant Shumway, that a grubstake agreement was entered into between plaintiffs and John J. Knop on March 23, 1954 (Plaintiffs' Exhibit 1); that the Faith Claims were located on April 15, 1954, in the names of the three parties to the grubstake agreement, and recorded on April 24, 1954; that on July 5, 1954, amended notices of location were placed on the Faith Claims, 1 and 2, and on August 10, 1954, amended location notices were placed on Faith Claims 3 to 10, all such amended notices naming the plaintiffs and defendant Knop as locators, and were recorded on August 12, 1954; that at the time of making said original and amended locations, the area covered by the Faith group was under an oil and gas lease in good standing; that on August 14, 1954, the Faith Claims were located by John J. Knop in his own name and recorded August 27, 1954; that a Quit-Claim Deed covering the Faith

group from Wycotah Oil and Uranium Company, a defendant herein, was executed and delivered to the defendant, John J. Knop, on July 29, 1955; that on July 26, 1955, John J. Knop executed and delivered to the defendant, Douglas J. Davis, a Quit-Claim Deed to the Faith group; both aforementioned Quit-Claim Deeds were properly recorded on August 5, 1955. An Abstract of Title was received as Plaintiffs' Exhibit 2.

In this regard, it was additionally stipulated at trial that the defendant, John J. Knop, on August 14, 1954, located the Faith Claims using then existing monuments and corners.

Upon the basis of the Complaint and the aforementioned stipulated matters and evidence, the plaintiffs rested their case upon the premise that such was sufficient to establish that the location by John J. Knop on August 14, 1954, was pursuant to an express trust relationship, sufficient to establish a two-thirds interest in the plaintiffs, and that the defendants, Douglas J. Davis and Grant Shumway, purchased said Faith Claims in bad faith and with notice of said interest.

Without admitting nor conceding the existence of any trust relationship whatsoever, the defendants Douglas J. Davis and Grant Shumway, testified regarding the limited question whether they were bona fide purchasers for value and without notice of plaintiffs' purported equitable interest.

Grant Shumway testified in substance as follows:
That he is a trained geologist and has entered into a

general partnership with Douglas J. Davis for the purpose of locating and developing mining properties (R. 8); that he had occasion during the early summer of 1955, to go into the Elk Ridge area upon a prospecting expedition, and there discover the Faith group of claims, ten in number (R. 9-10); that he walked the full length and breadth of the claims to see that all monuments and corners were properly marked; that he examined location notices contained in two monuments and found that the claims were located in the name of John J. Knop (R. 10-11, 22); that other pieces of paper appeared in these monuments, but that they were illegible and torn up (R. 10-11, 22, 23); that no development work had been performed upon the property, although it was apparent that the claims had been surveyed (R. 10-11); that as a result of this examination he proceeded, together with Douglas J. Davis, to Monticello where they attempted to locate John J. Knop (R. 11-12); that he and Mr. Davis examined the records contained in the Office of the County Recorder (R. 12-13); that no grubstake agreement was found (R. 13); that he had nothing to do with the negotiation for the purchase of the Faith Claims; that he had no knowledge of any grubstake agreement between John J. Knop and the plaintiffs herein; that he had no notice or knowledge of any outstanding claim by or equitable interest in the plaintiffs (R. 16); that the claims were purchased for \$500.00 apiece, which was a fair and reasonable value for undeveloped property in this particular area (R. 13-14); that subsequent to the purchase of the Faith

group, a drilling contract was let and approximately \$3,000.00 worth of development work performed on the claims (R. 14-16); and, that a portion of the property was subsequently leased to third persons by the defendants, Douglas J. Davis and Grant Shumway (R. 16). Mr. Shumway further testified that sometime in the early part of September, 1955, in a Moab blueprint office, Lloyd Webster introduced himself and inquired whether Shumway knew that he, Webster, had an agreement whereby John J. Knop was supposed to pay \$900.00 for the Websters' purported interest in the Faith Claims (R. 16-17). Mr. Shumway testified that he had no knowledge of such alleged interest. The witness further stated that at a meeting during September, 1955, Lloyd Webster advised him that he (Webster) intended to sue and he was sorry that Shumway and Davis were involved because "we (Shumway and Davis) didn't know about it when we purchased the claims" (R. 19).

Thereafter, the defendant, Douglas J. Davis, was sworn and testified as follows:

That at the time of the purchase of the subject Faith Claims, he was a partner of Grant Shumway in the general business of locating and developing mining properties (R. 31); that he had occasion to go into the Elk River area to locate mining claims (R. 31-32); that he found a group of claims located by John J. Knop (R. 32); that the name "John J. Knop" appeared on the location notices examined (R. 32); that on the basis of this information, he examined the records at the Recorder's office in Monticello, and discovered three

groups of location notices regarding the claims, the latter in the name of John J. Knop and dated August 14, 1954 (R. 33); that he located John J. Knop, quite by accident, and called him and arranged a meeting to discuss purchase of the claims (R. 34); that a meeting was held between John J. Knop and Douglas J. Davis approximately July 15, 1955 (R. 34); that the witness was advised by Knop at said meeting that the latter had entered into an agreement to sell the subject claims to the defendant, Wycotah Oil and Uranium Company, but the deed had not been delivered (R. 34-35); that Knop advised Mr. Davis that a possible arrangement could be worked out with Wycotah whereby they would relinquish their rights under the unexecuted contract to enable Mr. Davis to purchase the said group (R. 37); that a day or so later a meeting was held with Mr. Knop, wherein Mr. Knop showed Mr. Davis a survey map of the Faith Claims (Defendants' Exhibit A) designating John J. Knop as the owner (R. 34-35); that at this said meeting Mr. Knop explained that he located the Faith Claims in his own name and in his own behalf, and that he had complete title to the property, unencumbered by any equitable interest in the Websters (R. 36); that Mr. Knop, at said meeting with Mr. Davis, explained his pre-existing relationship with the Websters, stating that when the Faith Claims were originally located, the location was void for the reason the property was situated on a valid oil and gas lease, and that the grubstake agreement that had once existed between Knop and the plaintiffs had terminated by its own terms when

he relocated, and that in any event, it had been terminated prior to that time because of disagreements arising between the parties thereto (R. 36, 46-47, 48); that at this meeting, Mr. Knop stated that his attorney, Robert Gibson, had advised him that he (Knop) had complete title and was free to convey said title to third persons (R. 36); that at said meeting, no mention was made of an agreement between the Websters and Knop dated November 24, 1954, and pertaining to the Faith Claims; that subsequent to the meeting with Mr. Knop on July 15, 1955, the witness went to Denver to discuss the matter with Byron Neid, an officer of Wycotah Oil and Uranium Company, and at this meeting, the witness inquired about title to the property and was informed that attorney Robert Gibson had prepared an Opinion on Title, which showed title to be in Knop (R. 36, 37); that on or about July 26, 1955, he went to the office of Robert Gibson at Moab, Utah, together with John J. Knop, where a Contract of Sale was prepared from Knop to Davis, and at said time, a conversation was had with Knop and Gibson regarding the title to the property, and Mr. Davis was told that Knop had "good" title (R. 38-40); and that prior to going to Denver, Colorado, the witness consulted Scott M. Matheson, Jr., Attorney at Law, in Salt Lake City, Utah, regarding the effect of the locations by the Websters on April 15, 1954, over an existing and valid oil and gas lease, and was advised that in his opinion such locations were void, and was further advised that title to the subject property appeared to be in John J. Knop based upon the locations dated August 14, 1954 (R. 44).

It was stipulated by and between the parties hereto that if Robert Gibson, Attorney at Law, were called as a witness, he would testify in substance that he prepared a title opinion on the Faith Claims, which opinion showed title to be in John J. Knop (R. 54-55). It was further stipulated that if Scott M. Matheson, Jr., Attorney at Law, were called as a witness, he would testify that he was consulted by Douglas J. Davis regarding the Faith Claims, and that he advised Mr. Davis that title to said claims appeared to be in John J. Knop, inasmuch as the earlier location and amended location was upon a valid oil and gas lease, and prior to the effective date of Public Law 585.

Lloyd Webster testified that he gave no one authority to sell the Faith Claims (R. 56).

STATEMENT OF POINTS

POINT I.

THE COMPETENT EVIDENCE IS INSUFFICIENT AS A MATTER OF LAW TO ESTABLISH THAT JOHN J. KNOP LOCATED THE FAITH CLAIMS PURSUANT TO AN EXPRESS OR IMPLIED TRUST AGREEMENT OR RELATIONSHIP WITH THE PLAINTIFFS.

POINT II.

WHERE VOID MINING CLAIMS ARE ATTEMPTED TO BE STAKED DURING THE EXISTENCE OF A GRUBSTAKE AGREEMENT, A PARTNER, IN THE ABSENCE OF ANY EXPRESS OR IMPLIED UNDERSTANDING, MAY SUBSEQUENTLY LOCATE THE SAME CLAIMS AFTER THE TERMINATION OF THE AGREEMENT IN HIS OWN BEHALF AND FOR HIS OWN BENEFIT.

POINT III.

EVEN ASSUMING, *arguendo* ONLY, THAT THE FAITH CLAIMS WERE LOCATED PURSUANT TO A TRUST RELATIONSHIP VESTING AN EQUITABLE INTEREST IN THE PLAINTIFFS, STILL THE DEFENDANTS, DOUGLAS J. DAVIS AND GRANT SHUMWAY, TOOK TITLE AS BONA FIDE PURCHASERS FOR VALUE AND WITHOUT NOTICE.

POINT IV.

ASSUMING, *arguendo* ONLY, THE EXISTENCE OF A VALID TRUST AGREEMENT IN FAVOR OF PLAINTIFFS, UNDER THE UNCONTROVERTED FACTS IN THE INSTANT CASE, THE PLAINTIFFS MUST LOOK FOR THEIR REMEDY TO THE TRUSTEE.

ARGUMENT

POINT I.

THE COMPETENT EVIDENCE IS INSUFFICIENT AS A MATTER OF LAW TO ESTABLISH THAT JOHN J. KNOP LOCATED THE FAITH CLAIMS PURSUANT TO AN EXPRESS OR IMPLIED TRUST AGREEMENT OR RELATIONSHIP WITH THE PLAINTIFFS.

In the instant case, there is no argument against the proposition that the original location of the Faith group was upon land subject to the Mineral Leasing Act of 1920, and was wholly invalid and void for all purposes. This location was void as between the locators and the government, and also as to third parties acquiring rights in the land (*Henrickson v. California Talc Company*, (Cal. 1942) 130 P. 2d 806). It follows there can be no possession where the claim is void because "a location to be effectual must be good at the

time it is made" (*Beek v. Meagher*, 104 U.S. 279). Likewise, there can be no "relocation" in the absence of a prior valid location (*Ibid*).

It must be agreed the original location was defective and absolutely void, leaving only the location by John J. Knop of August 14, 1954, as the sole location upon the subject property. Moreover, it should be pointed out that the invalidity of the purported original location is not based upon minor technical defect, *e.g.*, improper monuments or lack of discovery, but is based upon a conceded inability to place *any* mining claim whatsoever upon the property.

It is submitted that when John J. Knop located the subject mining claims, he did so in his own behalf, and did not thereby create in plaintiffs any beneficial or equitable interest in the property.

Significantly, the Complaint alleges in Paragraph 3 that the subject mining claims were located by John J. Knop acting pursuant to an "express agreement" with the plaintiffs. It is apparent from the evidence that it is wholly devoid of the slightest showing of proof that any express agreement was entered into between plaintiffs and John J. Knop, charging the latter with the responsibility of locating the Faith Claims for the benefit of the plaintiffs. The allegation itself clearly purports to mean the creation of a trust relationship based upon mutual understanding and with the intention of the parties. The absence of any evidence supporting this theory is manifest; indeed, had plain-

tiffs sought to prove its case on the theory of an express trust relationship, they are confronted with the Statute of Frauds, which provides that an interest in real property thereby created must be evidenced in writing. (Section 25-5-1, Utah Code Annotated, 1953).

Despite the allegation of an "express agreement," which has wholly failed of proof, the Court determined that principles of equity created in plaintiffs an interest to the disputed mining claims, because John J. Knop used monuments erected by plaintiffs upon land explored by plaintiffs previously. This, coupled with the evidence supplied by the grubstake agreement, further created a relationship of mutual trust and confidence, according to the Court. This conclusion presumably is reached upon the theory of a trust implied in law, *i.e.*, a resulting trust; although not explicitly raised nor discussed by plaintiffs or the trial court.

A resulting trust arises where a person makes or causes to be made a disposition of property under circumstances which raise an inference that he does not intend that the person taking or holding the property should have the beneficial interest in the property (3 SCOTT ON TRUSTS (1939 Ed.) §4041). A resulting trust, unlike an express trust, is based upon rule, presumption or inference of law and not an expression of intention by the trustor (54 AM. JUR., Trusts, §187). Both express and implied trusts involve intention to create a trust, but in the case of a resulting trust the intention is implied or presumed in law, the chief source of such implication or presumption being a valuable consideration

(54 AM. JUR., Trusts, §194). This rule is well stated in 4 *Pomeroy, Equity Jurisprudence* (5th Ed.) § 1031, as follows:

“***The equitable theory of *consideration*, *** is the source and underlying principle of the entire class ****. In such case a trust is implied or results in favor of the person for whom the equitable interest is assumed to have been intended, and whom equity deems to be the real owner. This person is the one from whom the consideration actually comes, or who represents or is identified in right with the consideration; the resulting trust follows or goes with the real consideration.”

To establish a resulting trust, plaintiffs must prove not only that they furnished money for acquiring the property but that the money or the consideration was in fact so applied. (*Brown v. Liken* (N.M. 1933) 22 P. 2d 848); See *McDermott v. Sher* (N.M. 1955) 280 P. 2d 660).

Grubstake agreements, whether giving rights in trust relationships, or being enforced by their own terms, must be treated in like manner as other contracts, and must be supported by satisfactory proof of all the essential elements—especially consideration (40 CORPUS JURIS, Mines, page 1154; see *Cisna v. Mallory*, (C.C. Wash. 1898) 84 Fed. 851). 3 *Lindley on Mines* (3rd Ed.) §858, places emphasis upon ordinary contract requirements, stating as follows:

“Should the prospector during the life of the contract locate in his own name to the exclusion of the one supplying the capital, the title thus

accruing to him would be held in trust for his associate in the joint venture to the extent of his interest, not necessarily on the theory of partnership, but for the reason that his advances contributed to the acquisition of the property." (Citing *Meylette v. Brennan*, 20 Colo. 242, 38 Pac. 75; *Byrne v. Knight*, 12 Cal. App. 56, 106 Pac. 593, 594; *Lockhardt v. Leeds*, 195 U.S. 427, 25 S. Ct. 76).

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