1957

# Lloyd F. Webster and Carl A. Webster v. John J. Knop et al : Brief of Respondents

Utah Supreme Court

### ARGUMENT

IN ANSWER TO APPELLANTS' POINTS NOS. 1 AND 2, THE EVIDENCE IS SUFFICIENT TO ESTABLISH THAT THE DEFENDANT, JOHN J. KNOP, HELD THE TITLE TO THE FAITH CLAIMS ACQUIRED BY THE LOCATION OF AUGUST 14, 1954, IN TRUST FOR THE PLAINTIFFS TO THE EXTENT OF AN UNDIVIDED TWO-THIRDS INTEREST.

It is well established that a co-owner of an unpatented mining claim who secures a patent to the exclusion of his co-owner, holds the title acquired thereby in trust for his co-owner. *Turner v. Sawyer*, 150 U.S. 578; *Stevens v. Grand Central Mining Co.*, 133 Fed. 28.

The cases unanimously hold that a co-owner or co-tenant in an unpatented mining claim, who relocates the claim in his own name alone after the lapse of the annual assessment work, holds the title acquired by reason of the relocation in trust for his co-tenant. *Hunt v. Patchin*, 35 Fed. 816; *Kline v. Wright*, 42 F. 2d 927; *Yarwood v. Johnson*, Washington, 70 Pac. 123; *Ballard v. Golob*, Colorado, 83 Pac. 376; *Soule v. Johnson*, Idaho, 201 Pac. 834; *Cadle v. Helfrich*, 36 Ariz. 390, 286 Pac. 186.

These cases are merely specific applications of the general rule that "co-tenants stand in a certain relation to each other of mutual trust and confidence; that neither will be permitted to act in hostility to the other in reference to the joint estate; and that the distinct title acquired by one will inure to the benefit of all . . ." (*Turner v. Sawyer*, *supra*) and further that "a co-owner who amends the location notice, *relocates the claim*, or procures the issuance of a patent in his own name, will not be permitted to thus exclude the other owners and appropriate the claim to himself, but will be declared to hold the right or title thereby acquired in trust for all." (*Stevens v. Grand Central Mining Co.*, *supra*.) (Italics added)

In the case at hand the evidence shows a location by the plaintiffs and the defendant John J. Knop and a subsequent relocation in his own name by the said Knop. The Appellants argue that the general rule above stated should not be applied to this case because it is distinguishable from the cases above cited, on the ground that



in this case the original locations by the plaintiffs and the defendant John J. Knop, pursuant to the Grub Stake Agreement, were invalid at the outset. Respondents concede that the locations of April 15, 1954, were "void as between the locators and the government and also as to third parties acquiring rights in the land." Respondents deny that the locations were void for "all purposes" and contend that as between the parties to the location, a fiduciary relationship of co-tenancy came into existence. ✓

The principle that the relationship of co-tenancy, in equity, between co-locators, arises upon the location of an unpatented mining claim, even though invalid as against third parties and the government, is clearly illustrated in the following cases:

In *Clark v. Mitchell*, Nevada, 130 Pac. 760, the defendant agreed with the owners to do the assessment work on the Silver King Fraction claim for a one-fourth interest in that claim. The defendant failed to do the assessment work agreed upon and relocated Whirlwind No. 4 claim in his own name over the ground covered by the Silver King Fraction. The owners of the latter claim brought a suit to impose a trust in their favor for a three-quarters interest in the Whirlwind No. 4 claim. The defendant contended that the Silver King Fraction was not valid because it was separated into two parcels by a prior valid claim and consequently there was no trust relationship because the claim was invalid in its inception. The court, in rejecting the defendant's contention and imposing the trust, said:

“As under the agreement, Mitchell (defendant) was a trusted agent or representative of Clark (plaintiff), for the doing of the work on the Silver King Fraction and for relocating the Whirlwind No. 4 and Mitchell was in duty bound to protect Clark to the extent of the interests agreed upon in the Silver King Fraction and in the relocation of the Whirlwind No. 4, *Mitchell as a tenant in common, was estopped from denying the rights of Clark in the claim, as recognized by their agreement.* Whether the relocation made by Mitchell contains more or less ground, and whether the Silver King Fraction may hold a piece of land segregated from its location point, are not questions properly in issue in these cases. *These parties being in equity tenants in common, whatever rights Mitchell acquired by location or by possession, or otherwise, in the ground, would inure to the benefit of Clark to the extent of the undivided interest to which he is entitled. Whether one or more of the locations are valid or subsequent to others is not material. The undivided interest of Clark and Mitchell stand on a common basis, differently than if a stranger were seeking to recover the land on the claim that their location was void and that he had made the first valid one.*” (Italics added)

In *Speed v. McCarthy*, South Dakota, 77 N.W. 590 (affirmed, 181 U.S. 269), the plaintiff purchased an interest of one of the locators of the mining claims located by the defendants. The defendants relocated the claim after no annual assessment work was done. Defendants sought to defend an action by the plaintiff to impose a trust on the grounds that the original claims were invalid because there was no discovery and consequently

there was no cotenancy and no fiduciary duty because no rights came into existence as a result of the location. The court rejected this contention, holding that it considered the claims valid as between the parties to the location and defendants would not be permitted to deny that their locations were valid. Based upon this assumption, the court applied the general rule, using the following language:

"The relocater is permitted by the statute (requiring annual assessment work) to acquire the property in the same manner that the original locator would have acquired it, but because of his relation to another who may be a co-tenant, a mortgagee, or person having no estate in the property, he will be adjudged to hold the title in trust for such person. *In all cases of this character the trust depends upon the relation of the parties and not upon the manner in which title is acquired.*" (Italics added).

Appellants seek to avoid the imposition of the rule applied in these latter two cases by drawing an even finer distinction, that is, "that the invalidity of the purported original location is not based upon minor technical defect, e.g., improper monuments or lack of discovery, but is based upon a conceded inability to place any mining claim whatsoever upon the property." It is worthy of note that Appellants assert no basis, which bears a relation to the reasons announced in the cases for applying the trust rule, for making the distinctions sought to be made, that is, between cases where the claim becomes invalid because of failure to perform the annual

assessment work; cases where the claim is invalid from the beginning because of lack of discovery or because the claim is divided by a prior valid claim; and the present case where the claims are invalid because the land on which they were located was withdrawn by a pre-existing oil and gas lease. The trust arises out of the relationship of the parties and does not depend on the technical rules governing the validity of unpatented mining claims as between the locators and third parties or the government.

*Hendrickson v. California Talc Company*, California, 130 P. 2d 806, presents a situation in which the mining claims were originally located on withdrawn land and effectively answers Appellants' contention that the distinctions above mentioned should be made. The facts of that case are stated as follows by the court:

"On June 7, 1930, appellant, Aman and respondent, Oscar L. Hoerner, Scott and Farnum were on the Mojave Desert on business connected with another claim which is not here involved. Noticing the white hill to the northwest, they went over, discovered a deposit of bentonite clay and located a claim Co-operation No. 1. Desiring to take in 120 acres, they included as co-locators the names of appellant, Hendricksen and respondent, Ratcliffe. They described and marked on the ground a parcel of land some 8,500 feet long and 600 feet wide and erected a discovery monument and boundary monuments. \* \* \* No contention is made that all requirements for making such a location were not met and observed. On the same day, they informed Hendricksen that he had been included as one of the locators of this claim and

shortly thereafter Ratcliffe was informed of his inclusion. \*\*\*

"It appears, however, that the land covered by the Co-operation No. 1 claim was included in a large tract of land which was temporarily withdrawn from public entry pending the fixing of a definite location of the line of an aqueduct to be constructed for the purpose of bringing waters from Boulder Dam into this state, which withdrawal order had been made on June 4, 1930, three days before that claim was located. This land was not restored to public entry until August 6, 1931. The fact that this land had been withdrawn from entry was unknown to any of these parties on June 7, 1930, and was unknown to the appellants until after the land was located by certain of the respondents. That fact was learned by Oscar L. Hoerner and by Scott, Ratcliffe and Farnum shortly after the attempted location of Co-operation No. 1 claim, but none of these parties informed their associates Hendricksen or Aman of this fact. \*\*\* On December 15, 1931, and after the land had been restored to entry, the respondent, Oscar L. Hoerner located Company claims No. 1, No. 2, No. 3 and No. 4, respectively, including as co-locators, his wife, his brother, and five of the other respondents. A few days later, the other five conveyed their interest to the Hoerners and still later the Hoerners entered into an agreement with the California Talc Company which was thereafter assigned to the National Lead Company. The court found that each of these corporate respondents entered into these agreements with notice that the appellants each claimed an undivided one-sixth interest in and to that part of the land which had been included in the Co-operation No. 1 claim. \*\*\*"

The court said, after reciting the above facts:

1. w/ dryum  
land  
2. location  
3. land  
reinstated  
4. Relocation

"The controlling question is, whether, under these circumstances, the respondent, Oscar L. Hoerner had the right to relocate this land for his own benefit, after it was restored to entry and whether he thereby secured a valid location as to that part of the land included in the former Co-operation No. 1 claim free from any equitable claims on the part of the appellants. The gist of the respondents' contention is that the original location being void, any of the original locators had a legal right, after the lands were restored to entry, to unite with other locators in making the new and valid location free from any duty or responsibility to other appellants, who were their associates in the original attempted location. \*\*\*

"There is no question that the attempted location of this claim on June 7, 1930, was void as between the locators and the government and that the same would be void as to third parties who acquired rights in the land. \*\*\*

"The situation here presented is one where the government is not complaining, where no third party is involved, where one of the original locators discovered that the method by which they were proceeding was defective because the land had been temporarily withdrawn from entry, and which fact was unknown to the others, and where this party without informing the others concerning the situation attempted to relocate or, as he says 'to locate' the claim for his own benefit.

"With respect to the invalidity of mining claims and the rights of co-locators, the courts have long recognized that a different situation may prevail as between the co-locators themselves and that which governs as between the locator and the government or a third party.

"In *Speed v. McCarthy*, 181 U.S. 269, 21 S. Ct. 613, 616, 45 L. Ed. 855, the court said:

"The court held that the relation of co-tenant existed between McCarthy and Franklin when Franklin located the Holy Terror and Keystone claims; that original locators may resume work at any time before relocation; that Franklin's acts of relocation did not terminate the fiduciary relocation between himself and McCarthy; and said: "We think the circuit court should have adjudged the defendants to be trustees, and have enforced the trust." This conclusion is not precluded by the language of the Federal statutes. They provide that upon failure to comply with required conditions as to labor or improvements the claim or mine upon which such failure occurred shall be open to location in the same manner as if no location of the same had ever been made. Rev. Stat. US 2324 (30 USCA (28) ). It is contended that if Congress intended to have the relocater regarded as a trustee, such intention would have been expressed in the statute. The contention is not tenable. The trust results from the fiduciary relation of the parties and not from the operation of the statute.'

"The respondents argue that the trustee principle there applied has no application here since in that case the original entry was valid while here it was invalid. No cases are cited where such a distinction is drawn and since the trust arises from the relation of the parties, it should no more be defeated by a temporary withdrawal order than by a failure to comply with the statute originally giving a right of entry. In fact, the former situation results from ignorance and inad-



vertance, while the latter involves a more positive disregard of the law. No good reason appears for drawing such a distinction or applying a different rule in such a case as this. If such a rule applies to a subsequent failure to comply with the law where the original location was valid, the reasons for the rule would seem to apply with even greater force where the locators have associated themselves together for the particular purpose of obtaining title to a particular claim, where they have complied with all of the requirements of the law in that regard, where their efforts are ineffective for the time being because of the temporary withdrawal of the land from the entry, and where one of the associates discovers the invalidity of the entry and without informing the others proceeds to locate the land for himself when the right of entry is restored. The usual rules that a fiduciary relationship exists between tenants in common and that one co-tenant may not gain a present advantage by acting adversely to his fellow tenants should be applied to such a case. If it may be said that, strictly speaking, these parties were not co-tenants since a complete right of possession did not exist, similar principles should still be applied. To paraphrase what the court said in *Speed v. McCarthy*, supra, "The trust results from the fiduciary relation of the parties and not from 'whether or not they may technically be said to be co-tenants.'"

"We find nothing in the cases relied upon by the respondents which support their contention that the fact that this land had been withdrawn from entry is controlling and all equitable rules and principles are inapplicable because the attempted location was void in law and in fact. There is no distinction in this regard between a



mining enterprise and other enterprises for which men associate themselves with an express or implied agreement to work together for their common good and to a desired end. Equitable rules have frequently been applied in controversies over mining claims. *Speed v. McCarthy*, supra, is an example of such cases.

"The general rule is that parties engaged in a common enterprise owe a duty to each other with respect to all matters in connection therewith, that a trust relationship is inherent in such an association for a common purpose, and that one of the parties will not be allowed to deal with the subject matter of the association for his own advantage. In *Munson v. Fishburn*, 183 Cal. 206, 19 P 808, 810, the court said, 'It is well settled that the associates in a common enterprise, under whatever guise, have a duty to each other to make full disclosure of any preference or profit not common to all of the associates.' These general principles are applicable here and the argument that the Hoerner location in December, 1931, was not a 'relocation' since there had been no legal location theretofore, that the parties were not co-tenants and that some of the elements of a partnership as between these parties were lacking, are beside the point.

"These parties entered into a joint enterprise, having for its object the obtaining of title to this particular land as a mining claim and the resulting fiduciary relationship between the parties could not thus lightly be ignored. \*\*\* The fact that the original attempted location was invalid, the land not being open to entry, is not the conclusive or determining factor. When the withdrawal order was vacated, and the land was restored to entry, no third party acquired any rights

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